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13.233(c). Respondent’s appeal is
dismissed.

In the Matter of Ray Houston

Order No. 94–37 (12/9/94)

Request for Hearing. Respondent is
the principal officer of Johnson County
Aerial Services. Civil penalty action was
taken against Respondent and against
Johnson County Aerial Services.
Respondent did not send a request for
hearing with the case number assigned
to his case. An order assessing civil
penalty was issued by Complainant.
Respondent did send a request for
hearing that he signed, using the case
number assigned to the Johnson County
Aerial Services case. Respondent wrote
to the law judge, requesting that his case
be consolidated with the Johnson
County Aerial Services case. He
explained that he intended the request
for hearing to serve as a request for
hearing in both cases. The law judge
forwarded Respondent’s request to the
FAA Decisionmaker.

The matter is remanded to the law
judge to determine whether it was
reasonable for Respondent to think that
the request for hearing that he submitted
was a request in both cases, and if so,
whether the request for hearing was
timely in Respondent’s case or whether
there is good cause to excuse the
untimeliness of the request for hearing.

Jurisdiction of Law Judges. The
agency attorney argues that an untimely
request for hearing and the issuance of
an order assessing civil penalty divest
the law judge and the Administrator of
jurisdiction. The law judge has
jurisdiction to determine whether a
request for hearing was late-filed, and
therefore, whether the agency attorney
issued an order assessing civil penalty
in accordance with 14 CFR 13.16(b)(2).

In the Matter of Lee Philip Bohan

Order No. 94–38 (12/9/94)

Minimum Equipment List (MEL). At
the time of the incident giving rise to
this case, the Delta Boeing 737 MEL
specifically permitted the deferral of
maintenance of a broken forward
observer seat. In contrast, the MEL at the
time made no mention of equipment
associated with the forward observer
seat, such as the oxygen mask. The Delta
Boeing 737 MEL was later amended to
specifically permit deferral of the
forward observer seat and its associated
equipment. Prior to the incident, the
FAA had informed Delta that the MEL
at that time did not permit deferral of
maintenance of broken equipment
associated with the forward observer
seat.

A comparison of the Delta MEL in
effect on the day of the incident, which
did not expressly defer associated
equipment, and the subsequent MEL,
which did permit deferral of associated
equipment, supports the law judge’s
findings that the former MEL did not
authorize deferral. Moreover, assuming
for this decision only that Respondent
had the authority to interpret a MEL
provision as meaning more than its
plain language, Respondent should have
realized that this MEL provision did not
include the oxygen mask and should
have checked further before deferring
maintenance on the oxygen mask.

Maintenance. Respondent, a
maintenance coordinator in Atlanta,
argued that he did not perform
maintenance, as that term is used in 14
CFR 43.13(a), when he authorized the
deferral of maintenance on the broken
forward observer oxygen mask on the
aircraft which was then in Kansas City.
It is held that Respondent did perform
maintenance because he authorized the
non-repair or non-replacement of the
broken oxygen mask. Respondent
performed maintenance contrary to the
methods, techniques, and practices
acceptable to the Administrator when
he authorized the non-repair or non-
replacement of the broken oxygen mask.
To hold otherwise would be to narrowly
restrict Section 43.13(a) to the mechanic
or inspector in physical contact with the
aircraft although the important
maintenance decisions, including the
decision not to perform maintenance,
are made by supervisors or other
officials with corresponding authority.

In the Matter of Boris Kirola

Order No. 94–39 (12/9/94)

Complainant appealed from the ALJ’s
order denying reconsideration of his
order finding that the agency attorney
and Assistant Chief Counsel engaged in
obstreperous or disruptive behavior.
After Complainant withdrew the
complaints giving rise to this case, the
law judge issued the order finding that
the agency attorney had engaged in
obstreperous or disruptive behavior by
refusing to comply with the law judge’s
order to list specific civil penalty
amounts for each alleged violation and
for failing to reply to the order to show
cause. The law judge denied
reconsideration and found that the
Assistant Chief Counsel also engaged in
obstreperous or disruptive behavior for
failing to respond to an order. The next
day, the law judge dismissed the cases.

Jurisdiction of ALJ after Withdrawal of
Complaints. Once the complaints were
withdrawn, the law judge lacked the
authority to issue the orders. The

express sanction for obstreperous or
disruptive behavior under 14 CFR
13.205(b) is for the law judge to bar the
individual from the proceedings. In this
case, since the complaints had been
withdrawn, the question of barring the
attorneys from the proceeding was
moot.

Administrative law judges in FAA
civil penalty actions do not retain
jurisdiction to decide collateral matters
after the complaints have been
withdrawn.

Obstreperous or Disruptive Conduct.
Finally, agency counsel were not
obstreperous or disruptive. The case had
not yet reached the hearing stage. The
law judge’s findings of obstreperous and
disruptive behavior were based solely
on two written responses by
Complainant’s counsel to discovery
orders and on the failure of
Complainant’s counsel and Assistant
Chief Counsel to respond to two orders.

In the Matter of Polynesian Airways,
Inc.

Order No. 94–40 (12/9/94)

Weight of Aircraft. Respondent, a Part
135 operator, weighted its aircraft in
August 1898, and brought it to a
certificated repair station to be
reweighed in January, 1990. The weight
determined by the 1990 weighing was
244 pounds heavier than that from the
August 1989 weighing. Respondent’s
owner testified that he knew that the
aircraft had gained weight and that the
August 1989 weighing was no longer
reliable because of the installation of
floorboards since August 1989.
However, he testified, he thought the
January 1990 weighing seemed ‘‘too
heavy.’’ During an inspection on August
16, 1990, FAA inspectors found that
Respondent’s pilot had used the August
1989 weight to determine the weight
and center of gravity of the aircraft on
three flight for hire. Complainant
alleged that Respondent had violated 14
CFR 135.185(a) and 135.63(c). The law
judge dismissed the complaint, finding
that Complainant had failed to prove
violations of those regulations.
Complainant appealed.

It is held that 14 CFR 135.185(a) does
not provide that no person may operate
a multiengine aircraft unless the current
empty weight and center of gravity are
calculated from the values established
by the latest or the most recent actual
weighing. Section 135.185(a) sets forth
its own definition of the word
‘‘current.’’ According to that regulation,
the values from an actual weighing may
be used as long as that weighing
occurred within the preceding 36
months.


